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Civil Action No. 
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION, ) 

Plaintiff, PLAINTIFF SECURITIES AND 
YS. ) EXCHANGE COMMISSION'S 

) COMPLAINT FOR 
IEREMY R. LENT, JOHN V. HASHMAN, 1 PERMANENT INJUNCTION 
YINZI CAI, DOUGLAS WACHTEL and 1 AND OTHER LEGAL AND 
3RUCE RIGIONE, 1 EQUITABLE RELIEF 

Defendants, 5 DEMAND FOR JURY TRIAL 
)

THE LENT FAMILY TRUST, ) 
)

Relief Defendant. 

Plaintiff United States Securities and Exchange Commission ("Commission") alleges against 

iefendants JeremyR. Lent ("Lent"), JohnV. Hashman("Hashman"),YinziCai ("Cai"),Douglas Wachtel 

TWachtel") and Bruce Rigione ("Rigione") (collectively, "Defendants"): 
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SUMMARY OF THE ACTION 

This lawsuit involves materially false statements and insider trading by senior executives 

Inc. ("Nextcard"), a publicly traded company that issued credit cards through its banking 

ubsidiary, NextBank, N.A. ("NextBank"). During the dot-com boom, NextCard established a major 

lresence on the internet by placing ads on numerous websites. Those ads touted NextCard's ability to -

recess internet applications for its credit cards in amatter of seconds. But from at least November 2000 

hrough October 2001,Defendants knew that NextCard's credit card losses and delinquencies were higher 

han anticipated. Instead ofrevealing NextCard's credit cardlosses to investors, Defendantsmade a series 

)f undisclosed, after-the-quarter accounting adjustments on NextCard's books to lower artificially the 

eported level of delinquent loans and bad loan write-offs and to deprive investors of the ability to 

inalyze NextCard's quarter-by-quarter perfo&ance in a meaningful fashion. Defendants therefore had 

VextCard make. material misstatements. and omissions. in its earnings releases and periodic. reports for . . 

he 2000 fiscal year and for the first and second quarters. of the 2001 fiscal year. 
. . 

2. Defendants' adjustments - whichHashman described in handwritten notes. as being 

'accounting gimmickry" -.fell into three. general categories.. First, NextCard took millions of dollars of 
. . 

seriously delinquent loans that should have. been written down as "credit losses" and-reclassified them 

after the end of the into. a category called "loans held for sale." B~ doing so, Next~ard.mat&all~ 

understated its expenses and reservesfor bad loans on its financial statements.. Second, Nextcad took' 

qillions of dollars of other delinquent loans that should have. been written down as being "cr&tlossesn 

(aline itemtracked by analysts), andinsteadwrotethem down asbeing "fraudlosses" (whichwere buried ' . 
. . . : 

in the "other expenses'! line. item),.in orderto. m,ake. it appear that NextCard had fewer losses &m 

delinquent loans. Third, NextCard substaritially changed its. methodology for calculatingXhe. company's 

reserves. for bad loans in order to. keep. the reserve millions df dollars smaller than under the old method . , 
and to reduce the company's expenses on its income statement. 

3. NextCard did not disclose any of these reclassifications or changes in'accounting 

methodology to investors in its earnings releases and periodic reports for the2000 fiscal year andthe first 

and second quarters of the 2001 fiscal year. By concealing the accounting reclassifications and changes 

in methodology, Defendants led analysts and investors to believe falsely that NextCard was meeting 

i 



~rojectionsand that its delinquent loans and credit losses were rising only moderately, when in fact they 

vere escalating rapidly. 

4. The Office of the Comptroller of the Currency ("OCC") regulatedNextBank and rejected 

hese accounting adjustments during the Summer of 2001. In October 2001, the OCC therefore directed 

4extBank tomake a number of accounting changes, including the reclassification of previously reported 

i w d  losses. as now being credit losses. On October 31,2001, NextCard issued a pressrelease stating 

hat it was changing its accoimtingfor write-offs. and that the OCC considered NextBank to be 

;ignificantly undercapitalized. Nextcard's stock price fell 84% that day, and the company went into 

mnkruptcy the fol1owing year. Meanwhile, between February 2001. and August 2001, Lent, the. Lent 

%mil$ Trust, Hashman, Cai and Wachtel sold NextCard shares at artificially inflated prices. Wachtel 

dso. sold NextCard shares in December 2000 at artificially'mflated prices. 

JURISDICTION. AND. VENUE. 

5. The Commission brings this. action pursuant to Sections 20(d)(l) and 22(a) of .the 

Securities Act of 1933 ("Securities Act"). and Sections 21(d) and 21(e) of the. Securities Exchange. Act 

~f 1934. ("Exchange Act"). Defendants, directly or indirectly, have. made use of the. means. and 

instrumentalities of interstate commerce, of themails, or ofthe facilitiesof anational securities exchange; 

in connection with the acts, transactions, practices. and courses. of business alleged in this Complaint. 

6. Venuein this District is. proper pursuant to Section 22(a). of the Securities Act [15.U.S.C. 

§77v(a)]. and Section 27 of the. Exchange. Act [15 U.S.C. §78aa] because. many of the defendahtsGse 

located in theNorthern District of ~alifornia and a substantial portion of the conduct alleged in this 

Complaint occurred within the Northern District of California. 

7. Assignment to theSan Francisco. Division is. appropriate pursuant to Civil Local Rule 

3-2(e) because. a substantial part of the. events that giverise to. the. Commission's claim occurred in San 

Francisco County, where NextCard is headquartered. 

DEFENDANTS 

8. Defendant Lent co-founded NextCard in 1996. Beginning in 1996, Lent served as the 

president, chief executive officer and chairman of NextCard. He served as president until March 2000. 

Lent served as chief executive officer until August 2000 when he became chief strategy officer. From 



anuary 2001, Lent served on NextCard's executive committee. Lent was chairman on the board of 

irectors throughout the relevant time period. 

9. Defendant Hashman became Nextcard's chief financial officer in 1997. Hashman 

ucceeded Lent as NextCard's president in March 2000 and as NextCard's chief executive officerin 

~ugust 2000. From January 2001, Hashman served on NextCard's executive committee. 

10. Defendant Cai served as NextCard's general manager of the credit card business during 

:000, and was appointed president and chief operating officer effective January 2001. As general 

nanager, president and chief operating officer, Cai was responsible for the development and 

mplementation of NextCard's credit and underwriting models used to approve credit card applicants. 

Trom January 2001, Cai served on NextCard's executive committee. 

11. Defendant Rigione joined NextCard's board of directors in 1998. From July 1999 until 

ingust 2000, Rigione served as NextCard's senior vice president of international development. Rigione 

mcceeded Hashman as NextCard's chief financial officer in August 2000. 

12. Defendant Wachtel is acertifiedpnblic accountant licensedin California. Wachtel served 

is NextCard's Controller from 1997 until 2003. As controller, Wachtel was responsible for all aspects 

~f Nextcard's accounting department. 

RELIEF DEFENDANT 

13. In January 2000, Jeremy Lent and his wife, Molly Lent, established the Lent Family 

rmst for their benefit. Jeremey Lent and Molly Lent serve as the trustees for the Lent Family Trust. 

Beginning in February 2001, Jeremy Lent transferred NextCard shares that were in the joint name of 

himself and his wife to the Lent Family Trust, which then sold the shares on the open market. 

FACTUAL ALLEGATIONS 

Nextcard's Business 

14. NextCard was credit card issuer located in San Francisco, California and incorporated 

in Delaware. NextCard had its initial public offering in May 1999, and its stock is registered with the 

Commission pursuant to Section 12(g) of the Exchange Act. During the relevant time period, NextCard 

was listed on the NASDAQ National Market under the symbol "NXCD". In March 2002, NextCard's 

stock was delisted but still trades on the Pink Sheets. 
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15. WhenNextCard went public in 1999, it was one of the first credit card companies to offer 

lstant approval of credit cards issuedby NextBank, its wholly-owned subsidiary. Unlike nearly all other 

redit card companies, NextCard did not obtain customers by direct mail solicitations to persons of a 

articular demographic or financial profile. Instead, NextCard solicited credit card customers through 

le exclusive method of internet advertising. NextCard purchased advertising space on numerous 

iebsites and partnered with major internet companies such as Amazon.com. Those ads offered internet 

sers the opportunity to apply and receive approval for a VISA credit card within seconds. This 

iarketing strategy meant, however, that anyone with internet access could apply for a credit card from 

JextCard even if the applicant was having financial difficulty. To attempt to exclude undesirable credit 

ard customers, NextCard supposedly rejected applicants with FICO scores below an average of 680. 

16. Given NextCard's unique, and still unproven, business model, securities analysts were 

.losely watching the "charge-off ratio," "credit losses" and "loan loss reserve" numbers that NextCard 

eported on its financial statements.' Such numbers should be calculated using the percentage and dollar 

d u e  of credit card accounts thatwere delinquent ornon-performing. Honestlypresented, thosenumbers 

vould have allowed securities analysts and investors to evaluate NextCard's ability to reject applicants 

vho were poor credit risks and to collect its outstanding credit card receivables. 

Pefendants' Manipulation of Nextcard's 2000 Fiscal Year Results 

17. During November and December 2000, NextCard's senior managers could follow the 

ielinquent loan numbers on the company's books, and were worried that the delinquent loans were 

h owing faster than anticipated. In weekly emails to Lent, Hashman described NextCard's problems in 

neeting analysts' expectations for the fourth quarter with respect to charge-offs and delinquencies. In 

I November 1 1,2000 email to Lent, Hashman wrote: 

You had asked me about business risks that could provide downside for 

the stock.. .. First, the six month lag [credit] loss rate is hovering around 

The. "charge-offratio" is. the percentage. of loan write offs. within the portfolio.. The "credit losses" 
numberis. the amount of delinquient loans. that are written off or down as an expense. on the. income 
statement. The "loan loss. reserve" is the reserve on the balance sheet to. offset the. amount of 
anticipated bad loans. in the. comp'any's accounts receivable. 
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6.5% before adjustments for fraud, etc. We need to adjust the number by 

$2 million to get to the 5.5% level. This will involve the sale of 

charged-off accounts, which is not assured given there is not a tremendous ' 

demand at.this. time for charge-off paper.. 

. 18. On ~ovemb&25,2000, Hashman informed Lent that Nextcard's "[lloan losses [were] 

the biggest concern for the. 4q," and that six executives - including Hashman, Cai, Wachteland Rigione 

. ' - would meet ever-Friday to address'the. high los'ses. During this same time. period, Hashman made . 

handwritten notations regarding." - 213 more quarters of accounting gimmickry." 

19. After NextCard's. fiscalyear ended on December 31,2000, Hashman, Cai, Rigione and 

Wachtel discussed using an accounting classification called "loans held for sale''. (which are loans. to be 
. . 

sold at some. point in the future, usually within six months). to. reduce. NextCard's. delinquent loan 

charge-offs.. OnJanuary 2,2001, Wachtel, the company's controller, sent an email to Hashman, Cai and 
. ,

Rigione. stating that $3.6.million ofdelinquent loans needed to be transferred to. loans held for sale. "[tlo . ' . 

get our 6-month lag charg&oi!frate. to. below 5%.". . . 

20. On January 7,2001, ~ a c h t e l  informed topmanagement that NextCard had experienced . ' 

, . 

anet loss that was $1.8million higher than planned . Subsequently, on Jamiary 12,2001, Waihtel sent 

an e-mail to Hashman, Cai and Rigione with the proposed reclassification of delinquent and charged-off 

loans to the "loan held for sale" categorythat would be necessary if NextCard's loss and delinquency rate 

were to meet analysts' expectations. Hashman forwarded Wachtel's proposed reclassifications to Lent, 

'but wanied ~ e n t  . .to. "look at thenumbersbef~th&eclassificationfoget afeeling for. how theunderlying 
.. . 

. 
. 
-. 

. 

'econOmics are performing.. this does not look good.. .!I. .. . . 

21. On January 24,2001, NextCard issued apress release announcing its financial results for 

the fourth quarter and fiscal year ended December 3 1.2000. Lent, Hashman, Rigione, Cai and Wachtel 

participated in the. preparation and review. of the Company'spress. release.. Wachtelprepared Nextcard's . : 

.. . 
. . . .2000 Form 1 0-K annuali-eport,including draf€ingthe.~anagement's ("MD&A")Discussidn m d ~ n a l ~ s i s  

. . 

. . siction, while Lent, Hashman and Rigione signed the Form 1 0 - ~ r e ~ & . .  

22. NextCard's press. release andForm 1 o-K-u~~ report stated that ~ k t ~ a r d h a d  a $0.37. . .~ 

. ,per share net loss. for the fourth fiscal quarter, which beat theFirst Call %tim&of a-$0,38per share.net 
. . 

. . 
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oss. NextCard's books reflected, however, a $0.42 per share net loss -which failed to beat estimates -

)efore management's post-quarter accounting adjustments. 

23. NextCaid also represented in the press release and annual report that its bad loan charge 
. . 

~ f frate. (percentage of loans within the portfolio that were written off) for the f d h  quarter was 3.10% 

indthat its delinquent loan ratio (percentage of loans in the portfolio that were behind inpayment~~was 

3.92%. But the charge-off rate indicated by the company's books - before delinquent and charged-off 
. 

oms were reclassified as. being "held for sale" -was 4.46%. and the delinquency ratio. was 4.23%. The 

~ressrelease and 10-K therefore concealed that NextCard's delinquent loan and charge offs. were 

naterially higher thanin prior. quarters.. Had NextCard not transferred delinquent.and charged-off loans 

:oloans held for sale, its delinquency and charge-off rates. would have been much higher than reported. 

md would have informed investors. of the. ~omp~any's trua level of delinquent loans. 

24. On January 24,2001, Lent, Hashman, Cai i d  Rigione and Wachtel participatedin an , . 

earnings conferencecall with analyststo discussNextCard'sresults forthe fourth quarter andfiscal year 
. . 

ended December 31,2000.. . ~en t ,~ashman ,Cai and Rigione used a conference call script that they 

prepared with Wachtel's assistance. During the January 2001. earnings call, Hashman and Lent 

affirmatively led analysts. to believe. that the. Company's. delinquency and charge-off rates had remained . . . 

stable. 

25. The day after the earning release. and conference. call, one analyst firm raisedits. rating of 

NextCard. Shortly after the, earnings release, Lent, Hashman and Cai adopted and implemented written 

plans to. sell a portion of their :~ext~&d stock holdings 

~ e f e n d ~ n t s ~  ~ e x t ~ a r d ' s~anipulate  Results for the. First Quarter of Fiscal 2001 
j 

26.. After the end of NextCard's fast fiscal quarter of 2001, Defendants reclassified more 

late-stage. delinquent loans from the March 2001 quarter as being "loans held for sale." \Defendants 
. . 

realized, however, that this accounting pimn$ck would be. insufficient to hide its escalating &edit losses.. 

One. week before. the end of the March 2001. quarter, Hashman told ~ e n t  ib an email that the quarter "will 

be close, but most recent numbers. look like we. will make it." .Hashman.wamed, however, that "this. is 

all subject to amyriadof accounting adjustments. ~ o a n s .  held for sale,loans held for securitization, fraud . ' 

reclassifications. One thing is certain: we. have. an increasingly complicated accounting and finincia1 
. . 
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27. The day after NextCard's first fiscal quarter ended, Hashman sent an e-mail to Lent 

warning that "the unadjusted credit loss number is nearing 7% for the current period. . .. No matter what 

;pin we put on it the [7%] loss number is unacceptably high. . . . There is not a lot more we can do on 

he accounting side. In fact, it is surprising that we have done so much." 

28. Merthe March2001 quarter ended,Defendants concealed some ofNextCard's credit card 

losses by reclassifyng about $1.4 million in delinquent loans as presumptively being "fraud losses" for 

those accounts where the credit card holder failed to make the first payment and all subsequent monthly 

payments (a "First Payment Default"). Through this accounting move, Defendants reduced the amount 
, 

of "credit losses" that were disclosed as a separate line item on the income statement; instead, the 

write-down was hidden within NextCard's "other expenses" number on the income statement so that 

investors would not see the full extent of the company's write-downs. Defendants' reclassification of 

delinquent loans as being either "held for sale" or "fraud losses" allowed the Company to under report 

its current and six-month charge-off rates by 34% and 33%, respectively, for the first quarter of 2001. 

29. On April 25,2001, NextCard issued a press release and held an earnings conference call 

announcing its financial results for the first quarter ended March 3 1,2001. Lent, Hashman, Cai,Rigione 

and Wachtel assisted in the preparation and review of the Company's press release and earnings call 

script, while Hashman, Cai and Rigione actually participated in the call. Additionally, Wachtel drafted 

the Company's Form 10-Q,whichRigione reviewed and signed. The press release and subsequent Form 

10-Q made specific representations regarding NextCard's delinquency and current charge-off rates for 

the first quarter. However, NextCard failed to disclose that the first quarter ratios were materially 

understated in comparison with prior quarters due to the transfer of delinquent loans to loans held for sale 

and the presumptive reclassification of f ~ s t  payment defaults as kaud losses, rather than credit losses. 

Investors therefore lacked anyway of comparing NextCard's quarterly result on an apples-to-apples basis. 

Defendants ManipulateNextCardls Results for the Second Fiscal Quarter of 2001 

30. NextCard's second fiscal quarter of 2001 ended on June 30,2001. On July 2,2001, 

NextCard's current charge-offratewas 5.29% comparedwiththe company's prior forecast of 4.5% to 5%. 

To meet the forecasted charge-off rate,Defendants reclassified approximately $2.3 million in delinquent 



iccounts as fraud losses - rather than credit losses - where the account holder had filed for bankruptcy 

xotection and the Company's collections vendor believed there was a basis to challenge the bankruptcy 

%lingon fraud grounds under the Banlcruptcy Code (referred to a "bankruptcy challenges"). 

31. Althoughthe decision to reclassify challenged bankruptcies as fraud occurred in July, after 

%extCardtssecond quarter ended, the reclassification was appliedretroactively to accounts in the second 

luarter, thus improving NextCard's reported charge-off and delinquency ratios. The reclassification of 

oankruptcy challenges allowed the Company to under report its current charge-off rate by 29%. 

32. During the June 2001 quarter, Defendants also changed the way in which NextCard 

calculated its loan loss reserve for writing off bad loans. In prior quarters,NextCard had calculated the 

loan loss. reserve by forecasting the rateof delinquent loansover a twelve-month period. But during the 

June 2001 quarter, NextCard changed its loan loss. reserve methodol~&~ by forecasting the rate of 

delinquent loans. over amuch shorter nine-month period. Reserving for. nine months of losses rather than 

twelve months. of losses. decreased the necessary size. of the lo& 1oss:reserve by at least $5 million to. $8 

hillion (or about 15%. to 25%). for theJune.2001 quarter. Reducing the amount needed for the. loan loss 

reserve, sewed to reduce. artificially the loan loss. expenses on NextCard's June2001 income. statement 

and to. inflate. artificially the. company's reported net income. for the June 2001 quarter. 

33. On July 25,2001, NextCard issued a press release and held an earnings conference. call 

announcing its. financial results. for the second quarter. ended June 30,2001. Lent, Hashman, Rigione, 

Cai andWachtel assisted in the. preparation and review of the Company's. press release and earnings. call 

script, and Hashman, Cai and Rgione participated in the. call.. Additionally, Wachtel prepared the 
. . 

Company's. Form 10-Q, which Rigione. reviewed and signed. . . . . 

34. In NextCard's press release for the second quarter of 2001, Hashman announced that 

NextCard's "second quarter results prove. once again that the key drivers of ourbusiness. continue. to 

progress. ahead of expectations." 1nNextCard's earnings conference call for the. second quarter of 2001, 

Cai stated that "[all1 thekey performance metrics continue to. perform according to our plan", and that 

NextCard's. charge-offs. for the second quarter. met the company's. prior guidance to. analysts. In the. press 

release,copference call andForm 10-~.quarterlyreport,Next~ardannou&edanet loss per share of $.27, 

better than the consensus estimate. of $.29. he representations in ~ex t~a rd ' s .  press release, conference 
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all and Form 10-Q quarterly report were materially misleading, however, because Defendants failed to 

isclose that those results depended upon changes in NextCard's classification of delinquent loans as 

3ans held for sale, its reclassification of credit losses as fraud losses, and its change in methodology for 

alculating the loan loss reserve. 

rhe OCC Rejects NextBankfs Accounting Methods 

35. In the fall of 2001, the OCC began an expanded examination of NextCard's subsidiary, 

JextBank. During this examination, the OCC determined that NextCard's management had engaged in 

Ivariety of accounting manipulations that put the financial health of the bank at risk. In addition to 

inding other improper business and accounting practices, the OCC determined that NextCard's 

.eclassification of first pay defaults and challenged bankruptcies during the first and second quarters of 

1001 was inappropriate and inconsistent with banking industry standards. The OCC requiredNextCard 

:o reverse the reclassifications. beginning in the. third quarter of 2001,and required NextCard to use the 

welve-monthloan loss. reserve calculation due to. the inherent risk in their. loan portfolio.. . The impact 

Nas significant. Instead of reporting a current net charge-off rate of 6.13% for the. third quarter of 2001, 
. . 

in line with guidance, Nextcard reported a rate. of 7.89%. 
. . 

36. , ~t the coi&ioh of its exan&ation,the. occdeclaredthat Next~ank was "significantly 

undercapitalized." Nextcad publicly announced the OCC. action on October 31, 2001. and 

simultaneously announced that it would be. seeking a buyer for NextCard. NextCard's common stock 

price. dropped 84% on the. day of the announcement, closing at a price of $37.fiom the. previous. day's 

closing price. of $5.35. 

The IntproperStock Sales 

37. During 2000. and 2001. Lent told NextCard employees not to. sell their ~ e x t ~ a r d  stock 

because it would depress. t h e N e x t ~ d s .  stock price. However;contrary to Lent's directive, during late 

2000 and 2001 ,Lent, Hashman, Cai and Wachtel each sold significant amounts ornextcard stock while 

in possession of material nog-public inform&on. 

38. - During January 2000, Lent and his wife. established the Lent Family Trust and appointed 

themselves. as trustees.. As a trustee and while. possessing material non-public information about 
-

NextCard's financial problems, ~ e n t  10b5-1. trading plan on February adopted and irnplemented'a ~ ? l e  
. . 
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3,2001 to sell 220,000 shares of NextCard stock each quarter through the Lent Family Trust. Lent 

mended the Rule 10b5-1 plan on June 14,2001 to sell 415,000 shares of NextCard stock each quarter 

hrough the Lent Family Trust. Between February and August 2001, Lent transferred NextCard shares 

hat he and his wife held jointly to the Lent Family Trust, which then sold the NextCard shares for 

proceeds of approximately $7 million. 

39. While possessing material non-public information about NextCard's financial problems, 

Hashman adopted and implemented a 10b5-1 trading plan on May 1,2001. Between May and July 2001, 

Hashman sold NextCard stock for proceeds of approximately $321,000. 

40. While possessing material non-public information about NextCard's financial problems, 

Cai adopted a 10b5-1 plan on February 5,2001. Between March and August 2001, Cai sold NextCard 

stock for proceeds of approximately $423,000. Additionally, during December 2000 and prior to the 

implementation of her 10b5-1 trading plan, Cai sold NextCard stock for proceeds of approximately 

$480,000 while possessing material non-public information about NextCard's financial problems. 

41. Wachteldidnot implement a 10b5-1 tradingplan. BetweenDecember andAugust2001, 

Wachtel sold NextCard stock for proceeds of approximately $105,405 while possessing material non- 

public information about NextCard's financial problems. 

FIRST CLAIM FOR RELlEF 

(Against Hashman, Lent, Cai and Wachtel for 

Violations of Section 17(a) of the Securities Act) 

42. The Commission realleges and incorporates by reference paragraphs 1 through 41 above. 

43. Defendants Hashman, Lent, Cai, Rigione and Wachtel have, by engaging in the conduct 

set forth above, directly or indirectly, in the offer or sale of securities, by the use ofmeans or instruments 

of transportation or communication in interstate commerce, or of the mails: (a) with scienter, employed 

devices, schemes or artifices to defiaud; (b) obtained money or property by means of untrue statements 

of material fact or by omitting to state material facts necessary in order to make the statements made, in 

the light of the circumstances under which they were made, not misleading; or (c) engaged in 

transactions, practices or courses of business which operated or would operate as a fraud or deceit upon 

the purchasers of such securities. 



44. By reason of the foregoing, defendants have directly or indirectly violated Section 17(a) 

)f the Securities Act [15 U.S.C. 5 77q(a)] and unless enjoined will continue to violate Section 17(a) of 

he Securities Act. 

SECOND CLAIM FOR RELIEF 

(Against Hashman, Lent, Cai, Rigione and Wachtel for 

Primary Violations of Section 10(b) of the Exchange Act and Rule lob-5) 

45. The Commission realleges and incorporates by reference Paragraphs 1 through 41 above. 

46. Defendants Hashman, Lent,Cai, bgione and Wachteldirectly orindirectlymadematerial 

nisstatements or omissions to the public through Nextcard's press releases, earnings conference calls 

mdor periodic filings with the Commission. Defendants Hashman, Lent, Cai, Rigione and Wachtel 

lave, by engaging in the conduct set forth above, directly or indirectly, by use of means or 

instrumentalities of interstate commerce, or of the mails, or of a facility of a national security exchange, 

with scienter: (a) employed devices, schemes or artifices to defraud; @) made untrue statements of 

material fact or omitted to state material facts necessary in order to make the statements made, in light 

of the circumstances under which they were made, not misleading; or (c) engaged in acts, practices or 

courses of business which operated or would operate as a fraud or deceit upon other persons, in 

connection with the purchase or sale of securities. 

47. By reason of the foregoing, defendants have directly or indirectly violated Section lo@) 

ofthe Exchange Act [15 U.S.C. 5 78j@)] andRule lob 5 [17 C.F.R. $ 5  240.10b 51 andunless enjoined 

will continue to violate Section lo@) of the Exchange Act and Rule lob-5. 

THIRD CLAIM FOR RELIEF 

(Against Lent, Hashman, Cai and Wachtel for Insider Trading) 

48. The Commission realleges and incorporates by reference Paragraphs 1 through 41 above. 

49. As insiders of NextCard, defendants Lent, Hashman, Cai and Wachtel owed a fiduciary 

duty to NextCard and its shareholders not to use anymaterialnon-public information aboutthe company 

for their own direct or indirect benefit. Defendants Lent, Hashman, Cai and Wachtel violated their 

fiduciary duties to NextCard and its shareholders by selling or having others sell their NextCard stock 

between December 2000 and August 2001 while in possession of material non-public information about 

Complaint 
C-04- -



Textcard's fmancial condition and credit card losses. Defendants Hashman, Lent, Cai and Wachtel have, 

~y engaging in the conduct set forth above, directly or indirectly, by use of means or instrumentalities of 

nterstate commerce, or of the mails, or of a facility of a national security exchange, with scienter: (a) 

:mployed devices, schemes or artifices to defraud; @)made untrue statements of material fact or omitted 

:o state material facts necessary in order to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under 

which they were made, not misleading; or (c) engaged in acts, practices or courses of business which 

3perated or would operate as a fraud or deceit upon other persons, in connection with the purchase or sale 

3f securities. 

50. By reason of the foregoing, defendants have directly or indirectly violated Section lo@) 

af the Exchange Act and Rule lob-5 thereunder, and unless enjoined will continue to violate Section 

lo@) of the Exchange Act and Rule lob-5. 

FOURTH CLAIM FOR RELIEF 

(Against All Defendants for Aiding and Abetting 

Violations of Section 10(b) and Rule lob-5) 

5 1. The Commission realleges and incorporates by reference Paragraphs 1 throu~ 

52. NextCard made public statements in its press releases and earnings conference calls and 

filed with the Commission annual reports on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 3 1,2000 and 

quarterly reports onForrn 10-Q for the quarters ended March 31,2001 and June 30,2001, that contained 

untrue statements of material fact and omitted to state material information required to be stated therein 

or necessary in order to make the required statements made, in the light of the'circumstances under which 

they were made, not misleading, in violation of Section lo@) of the Exchange Act and Rule lob-5 

thereunder. 

53. Defendants knowingly provided substantial assistance to Nextcard's violations of Section 

lo@) of the Exchange Act and Rule lob-5. 

54. By reason of the foregoing, Defendants aided and abetted, and unless restrained and 

enjoined, will continue to aid and abet, violations of Section 100) of the Exchange Act and Rule lob-5. 



FIFTH CLAIM FOR RELIEF 

(Against Lent, Hashman, Rigione and Wachtel For Aiding and Abetting 

Violations of Section 13(a) of the Exchange Act and Rules 12b-20,13a-1 and 13a-13) 

55. The Commission realleges and incorporates by reference Paragraphs 1 through41 above. 

56. NextCard filed with the Commission annual reports on Form 10-K for the fiscal year 

mdedDecember 31,2000 and quarterly reports onForm 10-Q for the quarters endedMarch 3 1,2001 and 

rune 30,2001, that contained untrue statements of material fact and omitted to state material information 

-equired to be stated therein or necessary in order to make the required statements made, in the light of 

he circumstances under which they were made, not misleading, in violation of Section 13(a) of the 

Exchange Act [15 U.S.C. 5 78m(a)] and Rules 12b-20, 13a-1 and 13a-13 under the Exchange Act [17 

3 . R .  $5 240.12b-20,240.13a-1 and 240.13a-131. 

57. Defendants Lent, Hashman, Rigione and Wachtel knowingly provided substantial 

xssistance to NextCard's violations of Section 13(a) of the Exchange Act and Rules 12b-20,13a-1 and 

13a-13 under the Exchange Act. 

58. By reason of the foregoing, Defendants Lent, Hashman, Rigione and Wachtel aided and 

abetted, and unless restrained and enjoined, will continue to aid and abet, violations of Section 13(a) of 

the Exchange Act and Rules 12b-20,13a-1, 13a-13 under the Exchange Act. 

SIXTH CLAIM FOR RELIEF 

(Against Defendants Lent, Hashman, Rigione and Wachtel 

For Aiding and Abetting Violations of Section 13(b)(2)(A) of the Exchange Act) 

59. The Commission realleges and incorporates by reference Paragraphs 1 through 41 above. 

60. NextCard, by engaging in the conduct described above, failed to make and keep books, 

records, and accounts, which, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflected the transactions and 

dispositions of the assets of the Company, in violation of Section 13(b)(2)(A) of the Exchange Act [15 

U.S.C. 5 78m(b)(2)(A)]. 

61. Defendants Lent, Hashman, Rigione and Wachtel knowingly provided substantial 

assistance to NextCard's violations of Section 13@)(2)(A) of the Exchange Act. 

62. By reason of the foregoing, Defendants Lent, Hashman, Rigione and Wachtel aided and 
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~betted, and unless restrained and enjoined, will continue to aid and abet, violations of Section 

3@)(2)(a) of the Exchange Act. 

SEVENTH CLAIM FOR RELIEF 
' 

(Against Lent, Hashman and Cai for Control Person Liability) 

63. The Commission realleges and incorporates by reference the allegations in Paragraphs 1 

hrough 41 and 51 through 62, above. 

64. By virtue of their activities and positions at NextCard, including but not limited to their 

nembership on the executive committee, defendants Lent, Hashman and Cai were persons who, directly 

md indirectly, controlled NextCard for purposes of Section 20(a) of the Exchange Act [15 U.S.C. 5 

7St(a)]. 

65. As control persons, defendants Lent, Hashman and Cai are jointly and severally liable with 

NextCard for NextCard's violations of Section 10(b) of the Exchange Act, and Rule lob-5 thereunder. 

Additionally, defendants Lent and Hashman are jointly and severally liable as control persons of 

NextCard for NextCard's violations of (i) Section 13(a) of the Exchange Act and Rules 12b-20, 13a-1 

and 13a-13 under the Exchange Act and (ii) Section 13@)(2)(a) of the Exchange Act. 

PRAYER FOR RELIEF 

WHEREFORE, the Commission respectfully requests that this Court: 

A. Enjoin defendant Lent from, directly or indirectly, engaging in conduct in violation of 

Section 17(a) of the Securities Act and Section 10(b) of the Exchange Act and Rule lob-5 thereunder, 

and from aiding and abettingviolations of Sections 13(a) and 13@)(2)(A) ofthe Exchange Act andRules 

12b-20,13a-1 and 13a-13 thereunder; 

B. Enjoin defendant Hashman from, directly or indirectly, engaging in conduct in violation 

of Section 17(a) of the Securities Act and Section lo@) of the Exchange Act andRule lob-5 thereunder, 

and from aiding and abetting violations of Sections 13(a) and 13@)(2)(A) of the Exchange Act andRules 

12b-20,13a-1 and 13a-13 thereunder; 

C. Enjoin defendant Cai from, directly or indirectly, engaging in conduct in violation of 

Section 17(a) of the Securities Act and Section lo@) of the Exchange Act and Rule lob-5 thereunder. 

D. Enjoin defendant Rigione from, directly or indirectly, engaging in conduct in violation of 
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,ection lo@) of the Exchange Act and Rule lob-5 thereunder, and from aiding and abetting violations 

f Sections 13(a) and 13@)(2)(A) of the Exchange Act andRules 12b-20,13a-1 and 13a-13 thereunder; 

E. Enjoin defendant Wachtel from, directly or indirectly, engaging in conduct in violation 

~f Section 17(a) of the Securities Act and Section 1 O(b) of the Exchange Act andRule lob-5 thereunder, 

nd from aiding and abetting violations of Sections 13(a) and 13@)(2)(A) of the Exchange Act and Rules 

2b-20, 13a-1 and 13a-13 thereunder; 

F. Order defendants Lent, Hashman, Cai and Wachtel to disgorge their ill gotten gains in an 

mount according to proof, plus prejudgment interest thereon; 

G. Oi-der relief defendant The Lent Family Trust to disgorge an amount equal to its unjust 

:nrichment as a result of the conduct alleged herein, plus prejudgment interest thereon; 

H. Order defendantsLent, Hashman, Cai,Rigione and Wacthel to pay civilpenaltiespursuant 

o Sections 20(d) and 21(d)(3) of the Exchange Act; 

I. Order defendants Lent, Hashman, Cai and Wacthel to pay civil penalties pursuant to 

lections 21A of the Exchange Act for their insider trading; 

3. Bar defendants Lent, Hashman, Cai, Rigione and Wachtel from serving as an officer or 

lirector of any entity having a class of securities registered with the Commission pursuant to Section 12 

~f the Exchange Act, or that is required to file reports pursuant to Section 15(d) of the Exchange Act, 

msuant to Section 20(e) of the Securities Act; 

K. Retain jurisdiction of this action in accordance with the principles of equity and the 

Federal Rules of Civil Procedure in order to implement and carry out the terms of all orders and decrees 

that may be entered, or to entertain any suitable application or motion for additional relief within the 

lurisdiction of this Court; and 
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L. Grant such other and further relief as this Court may determine to be just and necessary. 

Dated: ~epternber 24,2004 
Respectfdly submitted: 

k~ r L. Davis ~ 
Attorneys for Plaintiff 
SECURITIESAND EXCHANGE COMMISSION 



DEMAND FOR JURY TRIAL 

Plaintiff Securities and Exchange Commission requests a trial by jury. 

Iated: September 24,2004 
Respectfully submitted: 

Tracy L. Davis 
Attorneys for Plaintiff 
SECURITIESAND EXCHANGE COMMISSION 


